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SECOND CONGREGATION IN WESTERN CANADA.

‘The first settlements on the Peninsula were in the
township of Niagara, immediately after the American
Revolution: and the town of Niagara was the first
capital of Upper Canada, and for many years the chicf
commercial point on the Lakes. There, under pro-
tection of the guns of Fort Nugara opposite, which
was still held by the British, all the sessions of the
first Parliament of the Province were held; and there
the settlers from the surrounding country congregated
to dispose of their produce and to purchase family
stores. It is not known that religious services were
held in that vicinity, on this side the river, previous to
the arrival of Rev. Mr. Addison, a missionary of the
Church of England, who began to officiate about 1790,
and acted as Chaplain to the first Parliameat. In
1794

Rev. JouN DUNN, a licentiate of the Presbytery of
Glasgow, came, by way of Albany, N.Y., and, on the
32th September in that year, “a meeting of a number
of the people” was held at Hind's Hotel, at which “it
was resolved to have a place dedicated solely to divine
purposes; that a Presbyterian church should be erect-
cd in the town of Newark, and that subscriptions for
that purpsse be immediately seton foot, as well as
one for the supply of a clergyman of the same per-
suasion”  John Young ‘merchant) was chairman of
the meeting, and Ralfe Clench, secretary. A Board
of Trustees was appointed, compased of John Yoyng,
Ralfe Clench, Andrew Ieron, Alexander Gardiner,
Robert Ker, William McCleMand and  Alesander
Hemphill.  The congregational records commence
from this date, and Mr Dunn was at once engaged to
preach half the time, at an annual salary of one hun-
dred pounds, Newark currency.  Thés wis the begin-
s:nz of the second Presbytevian conrezation formed in
Canala wst of Glengrarry.  Mr Dunn’s labors were
not successful, and, at the end of two years, he retired
from the ministry to engage in business pursuits, tor
which he was better adapted. It is not known that
the congregation were again suppaied until August,
1803, when

REV. JouN YouNs, a mative of Scotland, and then
recently pastor of St. Gabriel's Church, Montreal,
cams, at a salary of one hundred pounds, Halifax cur-
reacy, but d'd notremainlonz.  In 1854, Government
made a grant of four acres of Iand, upon which was
erccted, soon after, a frame church, 52 by 22 feet in
size, with a tall steeple, at a cast of six hundred and
twenty-five pounds.  About this time,

REV. JouN BURNS, a minister of the Secession
Church, who had recently settled with his family at
Stamford, comm:nced supplying the congregation at
stated intervals, preaching also at Stamford and to
ncighborhood gatherings in the vicinity,  Mr. Burns
was a native of E linburgh, Scotla: 4, where he was
educated, ordained and married, the latter interesting
event occurring on the 26th day of August, 1803, just
before his departure for Canada. He came over in
the same vessel with Rev. Robert Easton, who settled
at Montreal, and his attachment to whom was mani-
fested by naming for him his first born son, the late
Judgze Robert Easton Burns, of Toronto, Mr. Burns
spent scveral months visiting friends in the neighbor-
hood of Pittsburg, Peansylvania, and arrived at
Stamford in 1804 Sometime in 1806, although con-
tinuing his ministrations at Stamford, he removed his
family to Niagara, where they remained until the
breaking out of the “sccond American war,” His
arrangements with the Niagara congregation scem,
for a time, te have been somewhat indefinite, both as
to the amount of service to be rendered and of com-
pensation for it. In 1808, however, a certain portion
of the pew rents were assigned to him, by vote of the
congregation, in consideration of his preaching for
them cvery third Sabbath. In 1809, he offered to give
one-half his time, or preach every second Sabbath,
And, under some such arrangement, he continued his
labors until 1812, when the church building was sur-
rendered to Dr. A. S. Thorn, staff-surgeon, and became
the gencral hospital of the British army on the fron-
tier. Then, of course, regular religious services were
necessarily discontinucd, and, the inconvenient prox-
imity of the enemy's guns, in the fort across the river,

being very suggestive of danger, Mr. Burns moved his
family back to Stamford, as to a city of refuge. In
the summer of 1813, the church was deliberately
burned by the American army, the reason Leing as.
signed that, being converted into an army hospital, it
could not any lunger be considered a church, and that
the lofty spire afforded the British troops too good a
vicw of the American camp and fortifications.  Soon
alter, under circumstances not now known, Mr, Durns
was taken prisoner and carri -l over to Fort Niagara,
There, fortunately, hie found Major John Leonard, of
the American army, with whom he had enjoyed an
agrecable acquauntance and warm friendship n time
of peace, and for whom hie had named hus second son,
sume five years before.  Through the influence of this
friend, the inconvenience and hardships ofa prisoncr’s
life were greatly modified.  He was allowed to rove at
will about the fort, and, by invitation of the command-
ant, he preached to the garrison cvery Sabbath fur six
or cight mnnths, and unti! b . was hberatedi and per-
nutted to join his famuly. He immediately resumed
preaching at Stamford, and began systematie labors
for the spiritual good and personal comfort of the
soldiers in hospital and on duty along the fronticr. A
sermon on ““ True Patriotism * preached by hun inthe
church at Stamford, June 3rd, 1814, was prnted
pamphlet, at Montreal, by Nabum Mower. Itwason
“the day appointed by s Honor the President, ete.,
ctc., etc., of Upper Canada, for a Provinaal Thanks-
giving.” The teat was taken from Proverbs sxi, 21,
My son, fear thouthe Lord and the King, —and meddle
not with them that are given to change.”  The baule
of Lundy's Lane, and other warlike demonstrations in
the immediate vicinity, caused the church blding at
Stamford, also, to be taken for hospital use, and lus
regular labors with that congregation were brought to
a close.

In 1813, after the cessation of hostilities, a cheap
building was erected in Niagara for public worship,
and Mr. Burns reswimed his Libors there, dinvading his
time with the Presbyterian congregation then worship-
ping in the “old German Meeting House” m Thoruld
township, where he had frequentdy muustered during
the war. His family, however, from necessity, re-
mained at Stamford until May, 1818, when he com-
pleted the crection in Niagara of a fanuly tesidence
which is now occupied by lus daughter, Mrs. Camp-
bell, and her only surviving sister.  He also took
charze of the Government District School in Niagara,
which he continued to teach untl the begmning of hs
last sickness.  The late Hon. Willlam Hanulton Mer-
ritt was one of his pupils.  His relations to the Niagara
church terminated some time i 1821, the commercial
glory of the old town having departed, and the con-
gregation having become so reduced as to be unable
to maintain regular services. Itis not to their dis-
credit, under the circumstances, to say that, for his
last year’s services, he received scarcely five pounds
currency; for it 1s supposed they did what they could.
He did not long survive lus withdrawal.  Called to
officiate at a wedding in Queenston, he was caught, on
his return, in a blinding snow-starm, sv severe as to
entircly obscure the track, and he travelied around,
lost in the woods near the town, several hours, and at
length reached home exhausted and benumbed with
cold. Pleurisy fullowed, and, after an illness of only
three days, he “fell asleep” on the 22nd day of Feb-
ruary, 1822, in the fifty-third year of lus age. His wife
survived lim about tvo-and-a-half years,

Mr. Burns was an carnest, scholarly, and effective
preacher, a cheerful, warm-hearted companion, and a
true friend.  The sacrifices and trials and privauons
of his cighteen years of missionary life and labors, in
war and in peace, were not in vain; and they are
worthy of especial historic notice because he was the
sccond Presbyterian minister to permancntly setle
west of Belleville, and probably, the third in all Can-
ada who cntered upon pioneer missionary labors, with-
out pecuniary aid from any society, committee, pres-
bytery, Church or individual.  Heleft home and coun-
try, at his own charges, because his Master required
laborers in this wilderness colony, and he loved to be
about his Master’s business. He was the father of
six children, threc of whom—the two daughters at
Niagara and Thomas Burns, Esq., the efficicnt and
popular police magistrate of St. Catharines—still sur-
vive,

PRESBYTERY OF BRQCKVILLE,

Up to this time there had been no regular Church
organization and no official connection with any Pres-
byterian court; but, as in many o:her places, with a

Board of Trustees in charge of temporalities, there had
Leen only a sort of independent Presbyterian society,
After Mr. Burns’ withdrawal, however, realizing the
nced of ccclesiastical sympathy and aid, a meeting
licld on the 3rd day of July, 1821, at which * the situa-
tion of the Presbyterian congregations being taken
into consideration,” it wasresolved: 1st, “Thatitisthe
opinion of those present that the congregation should
be formed into a Church in the proper sense of the
word, and that application be made to the Canada
Presbytery to take us under their protection.” 2nd.
“*That we whose names are hercunto annexed consider
vursclves as members of this congregation, and are
anxious to be more closcly connected according to the
established rules of the Presbyterian Church;” and
3rd, * That we attempt to raise a sum sufficient to in-
duce Rev. Mr, Burns to become our pastor.” On the
18th of the samne month, another meeting was held, at
which the Rev. Mr. Smart, of Brockville, was “ request-
cd to accept the ofiice of commissioner to meet the
Presbytery of Brogkwitle at their next meeting, and to
autend all the sittings, etc,, and to vote and determine
i all matters that may come before said Presbytery,
according to the word of GGod and the standards of
the Presbytenian Church of the Canadas, and as he
will be answerable, and that the said Mr, Smart re-
port to us as soun as convenient, At the saine medt.
ing a pettion was drawn up and signed by James
Muirhead and fiftcen others, asking to be taken under
the care and ispection of Presbytery, and that such
members be appointed as may be necessary to organ-
1ze and establish the congregation and Church, and
pronusing all due respect and obedience. On the
25th December of the same year, the following per ons
were unanitwously chosen clders, viz.: Andrew Heron,
W, D. Miller, John Crooks, John Wagstaff, John
Grier, and John Munro, scuior, The death of Mr.
Barns. i February, 1822, prevented the consumma-
uon of the desired arrangement to inake him the fiest
pastos of the orgamized Church and congregation, and
svon thereafter

MR. THOMAs CREEN, a licensed “preacher under
the anspection of the Presbytery,” was placed over the
<harge, and succeeded Mr. Burns, also, as teacher of
the District School.  He soon, however, fell into the
snare so skifully set in early days for young ministers
of other denomimations by the Episcopal Bishop of
Quebee, and, tempted by the pomp and fascinauons
of the English Church, and perbaps by the £z00 per
annum promised by the “ Society for the propagation
of the gospel in foreign parts,” he abandoned the
Presbyterian connection, after a few months’ service.
On the . 3th day of January, 1823, he was solemnly
depoased of lus authonity to preach the gospel, and hus
license withdrawn, by vote of Presbytery in session at
Brackwille, after * having taken into consideration the
circumstances of the congregation at Niagara, and in-
vestigated the conduct of Mr. Creen,” which was de-
clared to be “marked by a total want of fixed Chpis-
tun and nunistenal principles.” On the 25th day of
December following he was married, as a layman, but
afterwards, in due time, he received Episcopal ordinz-
nation and became rector at Niagara,  This unfortun-
ate cxpenence seems to have effectually concluded
the relaton between the Niagara congregation and the
Presbytery of Brockville, and, except a brief period,
when “a

Mr. JoHNsON, also from Ireland,” officiated, the
Church scems to have been without pastoral care for
scveral years.

CHURCH OF SCOTLAND,

Under date of July 1st, 1824, a patent for the four
acres of land which the congregation had occupied
about tlurty "years under a grant from the “Land
Board,” was 1ssucd by the Government to James Mur-
head, Hon. Willam Dickson, Isracl Swaze, john
Grier and Andrew Heron,” upon trust for the use and
benefit of a Presbyterian congregation in the said town
of Niagara,in communion with the Churck of Scot-
Zand.” “And in February, 1825, “the trustees appoiiit-
¢d by the Government to superintend the temporali-
tics of the Presbyterian Church in the town of
Niagara, Upper Canada,” made application to ihe
Glasgow Colonial Society for “an ordained mission-
ary or missionaries of the Church of Scotland” for
service in Niagara and in neighboring places. % But,
before the Dircctors [of the Society] had it in their
power to carry on a regular correspondence with that
scttiement, the

REvV. THOMAS FRASER, formerly a minister of the
Relicf congregation at Dalkeith, and with regard to



